
	 1 

PORT CLINTON CITY COUNCIL 

 FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Meeting Minutes 
 

March 14, 2016 
	
	
1. CALL TO ORDER – Mr. Below called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  Present were committee members 

Gabe Below (Chair), Lisa Sarty, and Beth Gillman, Safety-Service Director Tracy Colston, Special Projects 
Coordinator Walter Wehenkel, Auditor Cole Hatfield, Police Chief Rob Hickman, Council President            
De Anna Kuzma, Shaun Kuzma, and Rick Noderer.   

	
2. APPROPRIATIONS – ORDINANCE 6-16  

a. Mr. Below focused discussion on budget highlights and any new items across (1) streets and 
sidewalks, (2) parks and recreation, (3) trees, (4) water and sewer, and (5) grants for 2016.   

b. Streets and sidewalks – Mr. Below asked about Madison Street, Fulton and East 2nd Streets, and any 
others.  Mr. Colston stated that the Madison Street water and sewer project would begin after Labor 
Day 2016.  Mr. Wehenkel noted that it could technically start anytime after July 1, 2016.  Bids and 
an ordinance pertaining to the Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) will need to be 
addressed in April.  Street reconstruction will begin in 2017.  Mr. Wehenkel discussed the Fulton 
and East 2nd Streets grant submission which will fortunately require less city matching funds, 5%, 
than previously thought.  Mr. Colston spoke about the Lakeshore Drive sidewalk project with an 
estimated cost of $280,000 of which ODOT may provide up to $180,000 toward to the project.  Mr. 
Wehenkel stated than an ordinance addressing assessment terms will be coming to council for 
consideration.  Mr. Wehenkel discussed the need for an ordinance authorizing the Safety-Service 
Director to bid for construction services, which was not included in the resolution of necessity 
ordinance already passed by council.   

c. Parks and recreation – Mr. Below asked about Lakeview, Waterworks, Portage, and West End Parks, 
and the proposed part time Parks & Recreation Director.  Mr. Colston spoke about the accessibility 
playground for Lakeview Park, plus the needed accessible sidewalks which will be of minimal cost 
to the city.  Mr. Colston stated the Senior Center will need a new roof.  Mr. Colston stated that the 
West End Park is completed, and that Portage Park has no scheduled major improvements.  Mr. 
Colston recapped the discussion about the proposed part time Director that was provided at the 
March 8th Parks & Recreation Committee meeting.  Mr. Colston stated the position would figure out 
the needs of youth and seniors.  Mr. Below asked if neighboring communities had a similar position 
and programming.  Mr. Colston indicated Sandusky, Fremont, Genoa and others do.   Mr. Colston 
asked if there were any more questions about the position.  Mr. Below replied no.   

d. Trees – Mr. Below asked about Madison and Second Streets and the ability to put spots for trees 
when Madison Street is reconstructed.  Mr. Colston stated that Ordinance 6-16 includes $5,400 in 
the City Beautification line item, which is the maximum given the rest of the appropriations.  Mr. 
Colston spoke reported that downtown businesses/property owners were in favor of trees by a ratio 
of 14 to 7.  This information was gathered while inspecting basements for the Madison Street 
project.  Mr. Wehenkel noted that trees would not be an eligible provision under the ODOT grant, 
and perhaps Main Street could pursue as the 2nd Street light posts were.  Mr. Below suggested that 
could be a future fundraiser for the organization.  Mr. Below asked what deadline would need to be 
met should plans for tree cutouts be decided for Madison Street.  Mr. Wehenkel stated September 
2016 for ODOT approval.  

e. Water and sewer – Mr. Below asked about the landfill line and Lakeshore Drive projects.  Mr. 
Colston reported that Mr. Wilber provided a draft agreement currently being reviewed by Ernie 



	 2 

Isaac.  Appropriations will be needed later and are not included in Ordinance 6-16.  Mr. Colston 
spoke about residential hook-ups on Zeemon Street and others.  An amendment to the appropriations 
ordinance will be needed in the future, which Mr. Hatfield recommended as the city moves forward.  
Mr. Below asked how long it would take for a financial return on the project.  Mr. Wehenkel stated 
that revenue would be flowing right away.  Mr. Hatfield indicated about five years to address the 
debt service on the project.   

f. Grants – Mr. Below asked about State of Ohio, Stensen, and any other grants to be pursued.  Mr. 
Hatfield indicated that the Stensen grant has been appropriated the current $25,000 amount in the 
past, however actual grant funds received from the Stensen fund would determine expenditures.  
That has been between $10,000 and $15,000 historically.  Mr. Colston and Mr. Wehenkel suggested 
that Madison Street light posts and trees could be a potential use for awarded funds.  Mr. Hatfield 
spoke about upcoming Ohio Public Works Commission grant pursuit with a July 1st deadline which 
will require an ordinance.  The city is also pursuing OWDA loan for the Madison Street water and 
sewer project.  Mr. Wehenkel discussed ODOT Small Cities grant pursuit for the combined Fulton 
Street and East 2nd Street projects.  Mr. Wehenkel spoke about possibly seeking credit enhancement 
funds through OWDA on the 2nd Street interceptor sewer line.  Mr. Below asked about the wetlands 
restoration and Mayor Wheeler’s inquiry to the Ohio EPA for matching funds.  Mr. Colston 
responded that they have heard nothing back yet.  $350,000 is needed for project completion.  The 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (ACE) has through calendar year 2017 for the work once the city’s 
match is available.  Mr. Hatfield spoke about the difficulty with financing that amount of funds for a 
project with no fiscal return.  Mr. Below asked about the ACE work scheduled for the East Jetty this 
year.  Mr. Colston confirmed that the work would begin on or after June 1st.  The city would have no 
financial obligation on that project.   

g. Police – Mr. Below as Chief Hickman if there were any items for discussion, and there were none.  
h. Mr. Noderer asked about fees for non-resident participants in parks and recreation programs.  Mr. 

Colston responded that it was done in the past and could be again.   
	

3. SASSY SAL CONTRACT 
a. Mr. Below discussed the questions presented in the January 30th letter from Mr. Wilber to Mr. 

Colston regarding the contract.  All were satisfied including those about restroom provision, 
insurance certificates, and reasonable annual wharfage fee for the use of the Jefferson Street Dock.   
The annual fee would be $5,500 for 2016 and 2017.  Mr. Colston indicated that Deputy Auditor 
Rachel Klimentov was agreeable to the payment dates in the draft agreement.   

b. Mrs. Sarty made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Gillman, to recommend to the Law Director to proceed 
with the ordinance.  The motion was approved 3-0.   

	
4. OPEN TOPIC 

a. Mr. Hatfield the city’s financial statements and likelihood of retaining a consultant for this work next 
year.  Given the savings using the independent auditors in 2016, expending funds for financial 
statement preparation in 2017 is reasonable.   

b. Mr. Hatfield noted that this year’s audit is progressing swiftly and will be submitted four months 
ahead of time.   

	
5. ADJOURNMENT – With no further discussion, Mrs. Sarty made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mrs. 

Gillman.  The meeting was adjourned at 6:19 pm.  

Submitted by  

Gabe W. Below, Chair 

March 20, 2016 


